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In the Matter of EB DOCKET NO. 03-96

)

)
NOS COMMUNICATIONS, INC., ) File No. EB-02-TC-119
AFFINITY NETWORK INCORPORATED )
and NOSVA LIMITED PARTNERSHIP }  NAL/Acct No. 200332170003

)

Order to Show Cause and Notice of 3 FRN 0004942538
Opportunity for Hearng )

To Administrative Law Judge

Arthur I Stemnberg

JOINT REQUEST FOR ADOPTION OF
CONSENT DECREE AND TERMINATION OF PROCEEDING

| The Enforcement Bureau (the “Bureau”) of the Federal Communications
Comnussion (the “Commuisston”) and NOS Communications, Inc , Affimty Network
Incorporated, NOSVA Limited Partnership (the “Compames™). and the principals of the
Companies (collectively, the “Parties™), pursuant to Section 1.94 of the Commussion’s
rules," hereby jointly request that the Presiding Judge accept the executed Consent
Decree attached hereto and 1ssuc an order adopting the Consent Decree and terminating

this proccedimg © In support whereof, the Parties state the following.

2 0n April 7, 2003, the Comnussion released an Order to Show Cause and
Notice of Opportunity for Hearing (“Order to Show Cause™)” mitiating this evidentiary
hearing (o determine whether the Companies had engaged 1n a musleading and continuous

lelemarketing campaign 11 apparent violation of scction 201(b) of the Communications

j
47CFR §194 OJC/

" Pursuant 1o 47 C F R § 1 94 a draft ordet 15 attached hereto




Act of 1996, as amended. (the “Act™) * The Commusston ordered the principals of the
Companics to show cause why (1) the Compamies” operating authority under section 214
of the Act” should not be revoked and (2) an order dirccting them to ceasc and desist
from the provision of any terstate common carrier services without the prior consent of
the Commission should not be 1ssued  The Order to Show Cause put the Companies on
notice that a forferture up to the statutory maxmmum $1 2 milhon could be ordered 1f 1t ts
determuined that they wilttully or repeatedly violated section 201(b) of the Act * The

Bureau was made a party to the Proceeding

3 On May 21, 2003, the Prestding Judge held a preheanng conference. At that
conference. he established a procedural schedule memoriahzed in an Order released May
23,2003 " In accordance with that schedule, the Parties conducted discovery and, on
October 14, 2003, the Bureau submitted its direct case exhibits. The hearmng 1s scheduled to
commence on November 12, 2003 On Seplember 23, 2003, pursuant 1o section 1 94(a) of
the Comnussion’s rules,' the Companies informed the presiding officer of the initiation

of the ncgonations that led to this Consent Decree.

4 The Parties have reached a mutually acceptable accord, the terms of which are
reflected 1n the attached Consent Decrec  The Consent Decree requuires, among other things,

that the Compamics mstitute a comprehensive plan i their winback department to ensure

" See Order o Show Cause and Notice of Opportumin for Hearing, 18 ECC Red 6952 (2003)
YITUSC §201(b)

47USC §214

A7 LS C §201(b)

" Order, FCC 02M-19 (AL, May 23, 2003)

47 CHER § 1 94(a)




future compliance with apphcable Comnussion rules and policies relating to the matters at
issue m the Order 1o Show Cause  In addition, the Consent Decree requires the Companies
to make a voluntary contribution to the United States Treasury m the total amount $1 2

million

5 The Parties believe that adoption of this Consent Decree and termination of this
procecding would serve the public interest and are consistent with the Presiding Judge’s
remarks at the prehearing conference rclating to settlement.”” The Consent Decree will
sccure future comphiance with scction 201(b) of the Act' in exchange for prompt

disposition of the 1ssues addressed 1n the Order to Show Cause

" See [1 10-12
TA7USC S 201(b)




¢ Based on the foregomg,. the Parties respectfully request that the Presiding Judge
accept the attached exccuted Consent Decree and 1ssue an order adopting the Consent
Decree and tcrminating this proceeding

Respectfully submutted,

. 1
AT L —
Maureen F Del Duca, Chief
Gary P Schonman
Hillary S DeNigro
Investigations and Hearings Division
Enforcement Bureau
Federal Commumcations Commussion
445 12" Street, S W., Suite 3-B443
Washington, BC 20554

Russell D Lukas, Esq
George L Lyen, Jr.
Lukas, Nace, Gutierrez & Sachs, Chartered
1111 19" Street, N W, Suite 1200
Washmgton, DC 20036

Counsel for NOS Communications, Inc

/
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Danny E Adams, Esq

Philip V' Permut, Esq.

Kelly, Drye & Warren, LLP

8000 Towers Crescent Drive, Suite 1200

Vienna, VA 22182
Counsel for Affimty Nerwork Incorporated, NOSVA
Limited Partmership, and the principals thereof and
of NOS Communications, Inc.

QOctober 24, 2003



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

1. Makia Day, a staff assistant in the Enforcement Bureau’s Investigations
and Heanings Division, certify that I have, on this 24" day of October 2003, sent by first

class Umted States mail copies of the foregoing “Joint Request For Adoption of Consent
Decree and Termination of Proceeding” to:

*Arthur 1. Steinberg

Administrative Law Judge

Federal Communications Commission
445 12" Street, S W., Rm. 1-C861
Washington, D C 20554

Danny E. Adams, Esq

Kelley Drye & Warren LLP

8000 Towers Crescent Drive, Suite 1200

Vienna, VA 22182
(Counsel for Affinity Network, Inc., NOSVA Limited Partnership and the
principals thereof and of NOS Communications, Inc.)

Russell D Lukas, Esq
Lukas, Nace, Gutierrez & Sachs, Chartered
1111 19" Street, N.W., Suite 1200
Washington, DC 20036
(Counsel for NOS Communzcations, Inc.)

SIbLe @M

Makia Day

* Hand Delivered
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Before the
Federal Communications Commission
Washington, D.C. 20554

In the Matlter of }  EB Docket No 03-96

)
NOS Communications, Tne , ) FileNo EB-02-TC-119
Alfinity Network Incorporated and )
NOSVA Limuted Partnership )y NAL/Acet. No. 200332170003

)
nder 1o Show Cause and ) FRN. 0004942538
Notiee of Opportunity {or Hearing )

ORDER
Issued: October 2003 Released: October __, 2003

| e Enforeement Buoreau (the “Bureau™) of the Federal Commurications
Comnussion (“1'CCT o1 “Commussion™) and NOS Communications, Inc ("NOS™), Aftinty
Network Incorporated (“ANIT), NOSVA Limited Partnership (“NOSVA™) (collectively, the
“Companmes™) have been engaged m the above-captioned hearing procecding (the “Proceeding™)
mitiated by an Order to Show Cause and Notice of Opportumity for Hearing (“Order to Show
Cause™) issucd by the Commssion on April 7. 2003 ' I'he matter was set for hearing to
determine whether the Companies had cngaged in a nusleading and continuous telemarketing
campaign in apparent violation ol scction 20 (b) of the Communtcations Act of 1934, as
amended (“Act™) * 'he principals ol the Companies were ordered to show causc why the
operating authorty of the Compames under sectton 214 of the Act’ should not be revoked. why
an order cdhrecting them to cease and desist from the provision of any inlerstate common carrier
services without the prior consent of the Commirssion should not be tssued. and why a forteiture
should not be imposcd

2 The Bureau and the Companies have negotiated the terms of a Consent Decree

that would terminate this Proceedimg and resolve ull 1ssues specilied in the Order to Show Cause
A copy of the Consent Decree 15 attached hereto and is incorporated by reterence.

3 | have reviewed the terms of the Consent Decree and evaluated the facts before
me | lind the Consent Decree satislies the requirements of sections 1 93 and 1.94 of the
‘ . 4 . .. .
Commisston's Rules™ and | believe that the public interest would be served by approving the

i See Order 1o Show Canse and Notice of Opporfunity for Hearmg, 18 FCC Red 6952 (2003),
4700 S C §201(b)

A7 LSO 8214

"47C R §§ 193,194



FCC 03M-XXX

Consent Decree and terminating this Proceeding.

K Accordimgly. I'T IS ORDERED. pursuant to section 1.94 of the Comnnssion’s

Rules.” that the Consent Decrce, incorporated by reference in and altached to this order, is hereby
ADCGIMTED

5

ITIS FUR THER ORDERED that all 1ssucs specified 1n the Order to Show Cause
are hereby resolved and this proceeding [S TERMINATED

FEDERAL COMMUNICA {TONS COMMISSION

Arthur | Steinberg
Administrative Law Judge

T4TCTIR § 194

o]



Before the
Federal Communications Commission
Washington, D.C. 20554

In the Matter of }  EB Docket No. 03-96
)
NOS Communications, Inc , )} File No. EB-02-TC-119
Aftfinity Network Incorporated and )
NOSVA Linuted Partnership ) NAL/Acct No. 200332170003
)
Order to Show Cause and ) FRN: 0004942538
Notice of Opportumity for Heanng )
CONSENT DECREE

I The Enforcement Bureau (the “Bureau”™) of the Federal Communications
Comnussion (“FCC” or “Commuission™) and NOS Communications, Inc. (“NOS”),
Affimty Network Incorporated (“ANI”), and NOSVA Limited Partnership (“NOSVA™)
(collectively, the “Companies™) hereby enter into this Consent Decree for the purpose of
terminatmg the above captioned proceeding (the “Proceeding”) initiated by an Order to
Show Cause and Notice of Opportunity for Hearing (“Order to Show Cause™) issued by
the Commussion on Aprtl 7, 2003." The matter was sct for hearning to determine whether
the Companies had engaged in a misleading and continuous telemarketing campargn n
apparent violation of section 201(b) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended
(“Act™) * The prmcipals of the Companies were ordered to show cause why the operating
authority of the Compantes under section 214 of the Act® should not be revoked, why an
order dirccting them to cease and desist from the provision of any interstate common
carmier scrvices without the prior consent of the Commission should not be issued, and
why a forferture should not be imposed

2. For purposes of this Consent Decree, the following defimtions shaill apply

(a) “FCC” or the “Comnmssion” means the Federal Communications
Commission and all of its bureaus and offices.

(b) “Bureau’” means the Enforcement Bureau of the Federal Communications
Commission

(c) “NOS™ means NOS Communications, Inc., all d/b/a and plan entities of
that company, including International Plus, 011 Communications,
INETBA  (or Internet Business Association), I-Vantage Network,

i See Order o Show Canse and Notice of Opporiunity for Hearing, 18 FCC Red 6952 (2003)
747U S C § 201(b)
'470SC §214



(d)

(6
(2)

(h)
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w

(k)

(N

(m)

(n)

Cierracom Systems, and any entity owned, directed or controlled by the
company, including all subsidiares, commonly-owned nter-exchange
affihates, concurring carriers, successors, and assigns.

“ANI” means Affimty Network, Inc., ail d/b/a and plan entities of that
company, includng HorzonOne Communications and Quantum Link
Communications, and any entity owned, directed or controlled by the
company, including all subsidiaries, commonly-owned nter-exchange
affibates, concurnng carriers, successors, and assigns.

“NOSVA” means NOSVA Limited Partnership all d/b/a and plan entifies
of that company, including NOSV A Network, Incorporated and Cierracom
Systems, and any entity owned, directed or controlled by the company,
imcluding all subsidianes, commonly-owned inter-exchange affiliates,
concurring carriers, successors, and assigns.

The “Companics” means NOS, ANI, and NOSVA

“Affihates” means any entuty owned, directed or controlled by either
Samuel P. Delug, a twenty-five percent owner of the Companies, Robert
A Lichtenstein, a fifty percent owner of the Companies, Michael W.
Amau, the Chief Executive Officer of the Companies, and Joseph Koppy,
the President of the Companies.

The “Parties” means the Companies and the Bureau.

“Order” means the order of the presiding officer adopting the terms of this
Consent Decree without change, addition, or modification

“Final Order” means an order that 1s no longer subject to administrative or
judicial reconsideration, review, appeal, or stay.

“BEffective Date” means the date on which the Order becomes a Final
Order.

“Order to Show Cause™ means the Order to Show Cause and Notice of
Opportunity for Hearing, FCC 03-75, released on April 7, 2003, and
reported in Order to Show Cuuse and Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, 18
FCC Red 6952 (2003).

The “Proceeding” means the evidentiary hearing initiated by the Order to
Show Cause

“Winback” means an attempt by the Companies or an Affilate to regain or
retain the bustness of a customer that' (1) has recently made a preferred



(o)

(M

(@)

(r)

(s)

(1)
{u)

(v)

(W)

carrier change; (11) 18 m the process of making a preferred camer change;
or (nt) the Companies believe will soon make a preferred carmer change

“Winback Program” means any plan or procedure, including the language
contained i any script, adopted by the Companies or an Affiliate for
Winback purposes.

“Winback Call” means a telephone solicitation for the purpose of
Winback

“Short Term Winback Call” means any Winback Call which represents,
suggests or implies in any way that the customer’s return to the service of
the Companies or of an Affiliate is for a limited period only

A “Partial Line Account Policy” means a policy or practice by which the
Companies or an Affihate may disconnect customer accounts that have
less active lines pre-subscrnibed than initially provisioned because one or
more of the lines imtially pre-subscribed have become pre-subscnbed to
another carrier.

"Customer” means an authorized consumer (person, a natural person,
individual, governmental agency or entity, partnership, corporation,
Itmited hability company or corporation, trust, estate, tncorporated or
unincorporated association, and any other legal or commercial entity
however orgamzed) offered, receiving, or previously receiving inter-
exchange services from the Companies

“LOA” means letter of agency or letter of authorization.

“Winback Representative” means all current and future employees and
agents of the Companies or an Affiliate involved with Winback, including
telemarketing representatives, managers, supervisors, and agents

“Misleading”™ means a misrepresentation, omission, or other pracfice that
1s ntended or could reasonably be expected to deceive, confuse or
mismform a reasonable consumer acting reasonably under the
circumstances

“Call as Customer” means a policy or practice by which a representative,
employee, agent or other individual otherwise working on behalf of the
Companies or an Affiliate requests permission from a Customer to act as
the customer, dentify himself or herself as the customer or otherwise hold
hrmself or herselfl out as the customer for the purpose of removing any
preferred interexchange or local carrier freeze on a customer account.



L BACKGROUND

3 On Apni 7, 2003, the Commussion released the Order to Show Cause,
imtiating an evidentiary hearing to determine whether the Companies had engaged 1n a
misicading and continuous telemarketing campaign in apparent violation of section
201(b) of the Act® The Commussion ordered the principals of the Companies to show
cause why (1} the Companies’ operating authority under section 214 of the Act’ should
not be revoked and (2) an order directing them to cease and desist from the provision of
any 1nterstate common carner services without the prnior consent of the Commussion
should not be 1ssued. The Order to Show Cause put the Companies on notice that a
forfeiture up to the statutory maximum $1 2 million could be ordered 1f it 1s determined
that they willfully or repeatedly violated section 201(b) of the Act.® The Bureau was
made a party to the Proceeding

4 On May 21, 2003, the presiding officer held a prehearing conference. At
that conference the presiding officer imposed a pre-hearing schedule, memonalized in an
order released May 23, 2003 7 In accordance with that schedule, the Parties were
permitted to conduct discovery, to be completed on or before September 26, 2003. The
Parties have been afforded the opportumity to conduct discovery and have in fact
conducted discovery as each Party deemed necessary to prosecute or otherwise resolve
the 1ssues described in the Order to Show Cause

5 On September 23, 2003, pursuant to section 1.94(a) of the Commssion’s
Rules,® the Companies informed the presiding officer of the initiation of the negotiations
that lead to this Consent Decree. Pursuant to section 1.93(b) of the Commission’s Rules,’
the Bureau negotiated this Consent Decree to secure future compliance with section
201(b) of the Act in exchange for prompt disposition of the issues addressed 1 the Order
to Show Cause.

II. AGREEMENT

6. The Parties agree and acknowledge that this Consent Decree shall
constitute a final settlement between the Parties of the Proceeding and the Order to Show
Cause In consideration for the termination of this Proceeding in accordance with the
terms of this Consent Decree, the Parties agree to the terms, conditions, and procedures
contained heremn

7 The Parties agree that this Consent Decree is for settlement purposes only
and that signing does not constitute an admission by the Companies, or their principals,
of any violation of law, rules or policy associated with or arising from its actions or
omissions as described n the Order to Show Cause.

*47USC §201(b)

47USC §214

“470SC §201(b)

" Order, FCC 02M-19 (May 23, 2003)
"47CFR §194(a)

"47CFR §193(b)



8 The Bureau agrees that, 1n the absence of material new evidence relating
to 1ssues described 1n the Order to Show Cause that the Burcau did not obtam through
discovery m this Proceeding or 1s not otherwise currently in the Commission’s
possession, the Bureau will not use the facts developed 1n this Proceeding, or the
existence of this Consent Decree, 1o mnstitute, on tts own motion, any new proceedings,
formal or informal, or to make any actions on its own motion against the Companies, or
their principals, concerning the matters that were the subject of the Order to Show Cause.
Consistent with the foregoing, nothmg n this Consent Decree limuts, wnter alia, the
Commussion’s authonty to consider and adjudicate any formal complaint that may be
(iled pursuant to sectton 208 of the Communications Act, as amended, and to take any
action m response to such formal complaint

9 For purposes of setthing the matters set forth herein, the Compames and
their Affilrates agree (o take the actions described below.

(a) Beginning on the Effective Date, no Winback Representative will make a
Short Term Winback Call.

(h) Beginning on the Effective Date, no Winback Call will represent, suggest
or imply mformation that.

(1) the Customer will need to take action to avoid having service
immediately disrupted;

{11) the Customer needs to sign a LOA to prevent the termmation or
disruption of service over any ltnes still billing with the Companies;

(nr)  an LOA s temporary,
(1v)  the Winback Call is a courtesy call;
{v) the Winback Representative is not a sales person;

(viy a new LOA is required to carry a Customer’s service durmg the
intenim period while a Customer’s lines are being switched to a
new carrier,

(vu) the Winback Representative is calling from the cancel department
or that the Winback Representative’s job 1s to cancel accounts or
take-down service,

(vin) the Customer’s request to switch carriers voids the Companies’

authorization to carry the Customer’s lines during the penod it
takes the new carrier to imtiate and complete a customer requested
switch,

(1x)  the Companies have a taniff on file with the FCC;



(x)  the FCC will hold the Companies liable for slamming if the
Customer fails to sign an LOA to authorize the Companies to carry
the Customer’s service during the period 1t takes a new carrer to
inminate and complete a Customer requested switch; or

(x1) 15 otherwise Misleading in a material respect.

{c) Begimning on the Effective Date, the Winback Program will require a
Wimback Representative to make, and each Winback Call will convey, a
representation that

(1) the purpose of the call 1s to retain and/or regain the Customer’s
bhusimess,

(n) if the Winback Representative requests that a Customer sign an
LOA, the Winback Representative will convey that signing an LOA will
authonize the Companies to act as the Customer’s carrier; and/or

(i)  1f the Winback Representative states that the Customer has current
call traffic, the Winback Representative will state how current the
information 1s

(d) Beginning within 30 days of the Effective Date, the Compantes will not
mamtam a Partial Line Account Policy The Compames will remove the Partial
Line Account Policy from their website(s), taniffs, and customer contracts. The
Compantes also agree not to have a Partial Line Account Policy in the future.

(e) Beginning within 30 days of the Effective Date, the Companies will not
request authornization to “call as customer.”

() Beginning within 30 days of the Effective Date, the Companies will adopt
and implement a wntten Wmback Compliance Program (the "Compliance
Program") focused on the requirement for full and accurate disclosures to
Customers by cvery Winback Representative in every Winback Call. The
Comphance Program will include, but 1s not limited to, the following
components

(1) Copies of Consent Decree to Prospective Successors or Assigns.
Prior to any sale, dissolution, reorgamization, assigniment, merger,
acquisition or other action that would result 1in a successor or assign for
provision of the Companies’ interstate communications services, the
Companies will furmsh a copy of this Consent Decree to such prospective
successors or assigns and advise same of their duties and obligations under
this Order.

(11} Notice of Consent Decree Requirements to Officers, Directors,
Managers, and Employees: The Companies will be responsible for making
the substantrve requirements and procedures set forth in this Consent




Decree known to their respective directors and officers, and to managers,
employees, agents, and persons associated with the Companies who are
responsible for implementing the obligations set forth in this Consent
Decree. The Compantes will, within thirty (30) days of the Effective
Date, deliver to each of their current directors and officers, and to all
Wmback Representatives, written 1nstructions as to themr respective
responsibilities 1n connection with the Companmses” compliance and
oblhigations under this Consent Decree. The Compames will distribute
said mstructions to all of their future directors and officers wherever
located, and to all fulure Winback Representatives, within 30 days of the
date on which such mdividuals are appomted or hired to such positions.

(1) Winback Code of Conduct. The Companies will establish a
Winback Code of Conduct (the "Code"), which will conform to this
Consent Decree and be reviewed and signed by all current Winback
Representatives  As part of their nitral training, each new Winback
Representative will also sign the Code.  All Winback Representatives will
reaffirm annually, mn writing that they have recently reviewed, and fully
understand, the Code The Code will establish a strict quality standard, to
which all Winback Representatives will be required to adhere. The Code
will estabhish, rater alia, that all Winback Representatives will make
representations consistent with paragraphs 9(b) through 9(c) above.

(iv)  Mandatory Quality Traiming: All Winback Representatives will be
required to attend a comprehensive supplemental training session
regarding any Winback Program, the Compliance Program, and the Code.
Such traimng sessions will be repeated annually for all Winback
Representatives, at which time they again will be required to sign the
Code, acknowledging therr understanding of 1ts requirements and
verifying their intent to comply with them. At the conclusion of the
tramming sessions, the Companies wiil require a Mastery Test to be taken,
and passed, by cach Winback Representative

(v) Post-Winback Review The Companies’ post-Winback review
process will be modified to check specifically for comphance with the
Comphance Program and the Code

(vi) Compliance Infraction List. The Companies’ Comphance
Infraction List will be modified to conform to this Consent Decree and
make a material violation of the Code a major infraction that will result in

immediate termmation of employment.

(vi)  Complamts: As of the Effective Date, the Companies will
promptly and in good faith address and resolve all complaints regarding
their Winback Program in a reasonable manner consistent with this
Consent Dceree and the Compliance Program. In all cases where the
Companies conclude that Misleading statements were made to a Customer



by a Wmback Representative, the Companies will take appropriate
disciplinary action against the employee or agent in question, consistent
with the standards set forth in the Compliance Program. In all cases where
the Companies conclude that Misleading statements were made by a
Winback Representative, the Companies will contact the Customer and
provide appropriate remedies.

(vi) Reporting  Within 60 days from the Effective Date,'’ the
Compames will provide a formal report to the Bureau. The Companies
will provide additional reports every twelve (12) months, continuing for
twenty-stx (26) months from the Effective Date. Each report will include
the following (a) a status report on the Companies’ progress m
implementing this Consent Decree, (b) a hist of all infractions assigned to
Winback Representatives under the Compliance Infraction List related to
this Consent Decree during that peniod, (¢) copies of all Customer
complaints related to the Companies’ comphance with this Consent
Decree for the period since the previous report, including copies of the
resolution of any such complant, and (d) electronic recordings of the
Winback calls made lo or by the complainants

{g) Should the Compames wish 10 make any changes to the Winback Program
outlined in paragraph 9 of this Consent Decree during the period beginning on
the Effective Date and continuing twenty-six (26) months from the Effective
Date, they must submut the proposed change 1n writing to the Bureau no later than
30 days before the proposed adoption of the change. Within 30 days of receipt of
any proposed change to the Winback Program, the Bureau shall advise the
Companies whether 1t objects to the proposed change. Within 10 days of
recelving any objcction from the Bureau, the Compantes shall be permitted to
present for the Bureau's consideration further justification for the proposal.
Should the Bureau fail to object expressly to the proposed change within the 30-
day time penod, the Companies shall be free to implement 1t. If the Bureau
should object expressly to the proposed change within the 30-day trme period, the
Compames shall not implement 1t.

10 The Compames will make a voluntary contribution (not a fine or penalty)
to the United States Treasury in the amount of $1.2 million within ten (10) calendar days
after the Effective Date. The Companies must make this payment by check, wire transfer
or money order drawn to the order of the Federal Communications Commission, and the
check, wire transfer or moncy order should refer to NAL Acct. No 20033217003 and
FRN No. 0004942538 If the Companies make this payment by check or money order,
they must mail the check or money order to: Forfeiture Collection Section, Finance
Branch, Federal Commumications Commission, P.O. Box 73482, Chicagoe, Illinois 60673-
7482. If the Companies make this payment by wire transfer, they must wire such
payment in accordance with Commission procedures for wire transfers.

" At the request of the Bureau, during this jmtial 60-day period following the Effective Date, the
Companies also will provide mformal status reports on the implementation of the Winback Program



1. In express reliance on the covenants and representations contained herein,
the Burcau agrees to termuinate this Proceeding and resolve the Show Cause Order.

12 The Companies agree, that within five (5) business days of the Effective
Date, they will formally request the Commussion to dismiss with prejudice their Petition
for Reconsideration of the Order to Show Cause, filed on May 7, 2003, and all related
pleadings, 1f still pending at that tume

13 The Companies admiut that they operate as resellers of interstate
(elecommunications services and that the FCC has jurisdiction over them and the subject
matter of this Proceeding for the purposes of this Consent Decree The Companies
represent and warrant that they are the properly named parties to this Consent Decree and
are solvent and have sufficient funds available to meet fully all financial and other
obligations set forth herein  The Companmes further represent and warrant that they have
caused this Consent Decree to be executed by their authorized representative, as a true act
and deed, as of the date affixed next to said representative’s signature. Said
representatives  and the Compames respectively affirm and warrant that  said
representative 1s acting 1n his/her capacity and within his/her authority as a corporate
oificer of the Compantes, and on behalf of the Companies and that by his/her signature
said representative 1s binding the Companies to the terms and conditions of this Consent
Decree.  The Companes and their principals also represent that they have been
represcnted by counsel of their choice in connection with this Consent Decree and are
fully satisfied with the representation of counsel

14 The Companies represent and warrant that they shall not effect any change
in thetr form of doing busimess or their orgamizational identity or participate directly or
mmdirectly in any activity to form a separate entity or corporation which engages n acts
prohubited 1n this Consent Decree or for any other purpose which would otherwise
circumvent any part of this Consent Decree or the obligations of this Consent Decree.

15 The Companies waive their right to a hearing on the issues designated 1n
the Show Cause Order, including all of the usual procedures for preparation and review
of an imtial decision. The Compames waive their nght to judicial reconsideration,
review, appeal or stay, or to otherwise challenge or contest the validity of this Consent
Dccree and the Order, provided the presiding officer 1ssues the Order without change,
addition, or modification of this Consent Decree.

16.  The Compames’ and the Bureau’s decision to enter into this Consent
Decree 1s expressly contingent upon the signing of the Order by the presiding officer and
the Order becoming a Final Order without revision, change, addition, or modification of
this Consent Decree.  The Parties agree that either the Bureau or the Companies may
withdraw from this Consent Decree 1f any revision, change, addition, or modification 1s
made to 1ts terms



17. The Parties agree that the Show Cause Order may be used 1n construing
this Consent Decree.

18 The Parties agree that tms Consent Decree shall become part of the record
of this Proceeding only on 1ts Effective Date.

19 If the Commission, or the Umited States on behalf of the Comnussion,
brings a judictal action to enforce the terms of this Consent Decree, the Parties will not
contest the validity of the Consent Decree, and the Companies and theiwr Affiliates will
walve any statutory right to a tnal de novo. The Companies and their Affilates do not
walve any statutory right to a tnal de novo to determine whether they violated this
Consent Decree

20. The Companies and their principals watve any rights they may otherwise
have under the Equal Access to Justice Act, 5U S C. § 504 and 47 CF.R. § 1 150 et seq.

21 In the event that this Consent Decree is rendered invalid by any court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall become null and void and may not be used 1n any manner
in any legal proceeding.

22 Any matenial violation of the Consent Decree will constitute a separate
violation of a Commussion order, entithng the Commission to exercise any rights and
remedics attendant to the enforcement of a Commussion order. The Commuission agrees
that before 1t takes any formal action n connection with any alleged or suspected
violation of this Consent Decree, the Companies or their Affiliates will be notified of the
alleged or suspected violation and be given a reasonable opportunity to respond.

23 The Parties agree that if any provision of the Consent Decree conf{licts
with any subsequent rule or order adopted by the Commission, where compliance with
the provision would result in a violation, (except an order specifically intended to revise
the terms of this Consent Decree to which the Companies and their principals do not
consent) that provision will be superseded by such Commission rule or order

24 By this Consent Decree, the Companies do not waive or alter their nght to
assert and seek protection from disclosure of any privileged or otherwise confidential and
protected documents and information, or to seek appropnate safeguards of confidentiality
for any competitively sensitive or proprietary information. The status of materials
prepared for, reviews made and discussions held in the preparation for and
implementation of the Companies’ compliance efforts under this Consent Decree, which
would otherwise be privileged or confidential, are not altered by the execution or
implementation of the terms of this Order and no warver of such privileges 1s made by
this Consent Decree

25 The Parties agree that, within five (5) business days after the date of this
Consent Decree, they will file with the presiding officer a joint motion and draft order
requesting that the presiding officer sign the draft order, accept Consent Decree, and



close the record The Parties will take such other actions as may be necessary to
effectuate the objectives of this Consent Decree.

26. This Consent Decree may be signed in counterparts.

For the Enforcement Bureau, For NOS Commurucations, Inc.,
Federal Communications Commission Affimity Network Incorporated, and

NOSVA Limited Partnership
[{‘/M ' /’ =7 _

"David H. Solomon Michael Armau
Chlc/f/ Chief Executive Officer
/é ZLJJ

ﬂe Date
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close the record. The Parties will take such other actions as may be necessary to
effectuate the objectives of this Consent Decree.

26 This Consent Decree may be signed in counterparts.

For the Enforcement Burcau, For NOS Communications, Inc.,
Federal Communications Commission Affity Nctwork Incorporated, and
NOSVA Limited Parmership
David H. Solomen Michael Aman
Chief Chief Executive Qfficer
falnolo?
Date Date ' '
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